
 

Putting People First Providing for our Communities Preserving our Heritage Promoting the County Protecting our Future  
County of Herefordshire District Council, PO Box 239, HEREFORD, HR1 1ZU 

Main Switchboard (01432) 260000 - www.herefordshire.gov.uk 
$$Agenda0.doc 

 

Chief Executive’s Office 
Chief Executive:  N.M. Pringle 

To:  All Members of Cabinet: 
 R.J. Phillips (Leader)
 G.V. Hyde (Deputy Leader)
 Mrs. L.O. Barnett
 P.J. Edwards
 Mrs. J.P. French
 J.C. Mayson
 D.W. Rule MBE
 R.V. Stockton
 D.B. Wilcox
 R.M. Wilson
 J.W. Edwards (ex-officio)
 A.C.R. Chappell (ex-officio)
 Mrs. P.A. Andrews (ex-officio)
 T.M. James (ex-officio)
 R.I. Matthews (ex-officio) 

Your Ref:  

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line/Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

 

NMP/CD 

Mr. N.M. Pringle 

(01432) 260044 

(01432) 340189 

npringle@herefordshire.gov.uk 

17th June, 2005 

 

Dear Councillor, 
 
MEETING OF CABINET 
THURSDAY, 9TH JUNE, 2005 AT 2.15 P.M. 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD 
 

AGENDA (05/10) 
 
 
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 To receive any apologies for absence.   
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 To receive any declarations of interest by members in respect of items on this agenda.   
  
3. ANNUAL EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 2004/05   
  
 To receive the Council's Annual Efficiency Report for 2004/05.    (Pages 1 - 6) 
  
4. COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT SUBMISSION OF SELF-

ASSESSMENTS   

. 



 

Putting People First Providing for our Communities Preserving our Heritage Promoting the County Protecting our Future  
County of Herefordshire District Council, PO Box 240, HEREFORD, HR1 1ZT 

Main Switchboard (01432) 260000 - www.herefordshire.gov.uk 
$$Agenda0.doc 

 

  
 To agree the arrangements for the submission of the self-assessments relating to the 

Corporate Assessments (CA) and Joint Area Review (JAR) as the first stages of preparation 
for the Corporate Performance Assessment (CPA).  (Pages 7 - 14) 

  
Please note that the self-assessment for the Joint Area Review will be circulated prior to the 
meeting. 
  
5. PAY AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2005-08   
  
 To consider and approve the Council's Pay and Workforce Development Strategy 2005/08, 

plus Operating Plan for 2005/06.  (Pages 15 - 44) 
  
6. HOMELESSNESS BUDGET   
  
 To consider virement proposals from within the base budget 2005/06, to meet anticipated 

additional costs arising from increased demand for homelessness provision.  (Pages 45 - 48) 
  
  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 
N.M. PRINGLE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 
Copies to: Chairman of the Council 

Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Vice-Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Chairmen of Scrutiny Committees 
Group Leaders 
Directors 
County Secretary and Solicitor 
County Treasurer 

 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\5\2\AI00006256\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc01/06/05 

The Public's Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 

unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of 
the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a 
maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50, for postage).   

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to 
inspect and copy documents. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\5\2\AI00006256\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc01/06/05 

 
Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made 
available in large print or on tape.  Please contact 
the officer named below in advance of the meeting 
who will be pleased to deal with your request. 
The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

Public Transport links 

• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 
approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco 
store in Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street 
/ Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its 
junction with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same 
bus stop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so either by telephoning Mrs Christine Dyer on 
01432 260222 or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 
p.m. Monday - Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council 
Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 

 

 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-
Consumer waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening 
agents (OBA). Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production 
and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



FIREBROCK0.doc 21.05.97 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located 
at the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 





 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
 Andrew Tanner, Assistant County Treasurer on  014532 260162 

AnnualEfficiencyStatement0.doc  

ANNUAL EFFICIENCY STATEMENT – 2004/05 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: 
CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE 

CABINET 9TH JUNE 2005  
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To approve the Council’s Annual Efficiency Statement – 2004/05. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision. 

Recommendations 

That the Annual Efficiency Statement – 2004/05 be approved. 

Reasons 

1. The Council is required to complete and submit the first backward look statement 
(BLAES) for 2004/05 by 15th June 2005.  Our statement will be submitted in the 
template format determined by the ODPM toolkit. 

2. Detailed guidance on the completion of this return was issued on 16th May.  An 
important difference with the Forward Looking AES is the requirement to provide 
quality cross checks. This serves to ensure that there is no diminution of service 
where cash savings are submitted and that performance gains can be substantiated. 

3. The guidance suggests no minimum figure for the BLAES but the technical note sent 
out in January referred to the fact that councils should include the BLAES in the 
Value for Money (VFM) self assessment as part of the annual Use of Resources 
assessment.   

Considerations 

4. The Forward Looking statement produced in April concentrated largely on cash 
releasing savings in order to deliver the Corporate Plan.  The BLAES has had to take 
a more balanced approach between cash savings and performance gains, 
predominantly because there was no formal corporate savings exercise carried out 
as part of the 2004/05 budget. The expectation at that time was for services to 
continue ensuring performance improvement but operating within cash limited 
budgets and manage resources accordingly.  

AGENDA ITEM 3

1



5. There is still a shortage of clear and consistent, national guidance over how 
performance gains are calculated.  The Council has developed its own methodology 
in comparing performance improvement to expenditure and has included those areas 
of service where performance increases are, therefore, greater than the 
corresponding net expenditure increase. This system is, of course, subject to 
significant sensitivities owing to the nature of performance information.  For example, 
it was considered using the basket of performance indicators used for the Local 
Public Service Agreement’s cost effectiveness target within the BLAES.  Using 
currently available and robust performance information, the Council could prove a 
rise in cost effectiveness of £7,700,000.  However this figure could change 
dramatically on the movement of a single indicator and hence it is meaningless in 
assessing true cost effectiveness.  This demonstrates the difficulty of the task in 
constructing the BLEAS owing to its subjective nature. 

5. The BLAES attached in Appendix 1, therefore, takes a more measured view on those 
efficiency gains that have been submitted.  The overall gain is just under £1,900,000 
with just under £1,000,000 being cashable.  The BLAES next year will be a key 
report as it assesses the Council’s performance against the Forward Looking Annual 
Efficiency Statement.  It continues to be the Council’s view that the real driver behind 
the Efficiency Agenda is to secure improvement through the better procurement of 
services and the realisation of operational efficiencies, and this is where the focus 
will be maintained.  

Risk Management 
 
The Annual Efficiency Statement will form a major part of the Council’s Use of Resources 
assessment.  Whilst the main focus may be on the Forward Looking Statement, a good 
performance on the backward looking statement can only help our assessment.   Failure to 
reach level 3 on this assessment will prevent the Council from becoming an ‘excellent’ 
authority.  The Council currently assesses itself as being at level 2 on the revised criteria. 

Consultees 

None. 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

2



APPENDIX 1 

ANNUAL EFFICIENCY STATEMENT - BACKWARD LOOK 
 

Local authority  
 

Herefordshire Council   
 

Contact name  
Andrew Tanner  

  
Job title  
Assistant County Treasurer   

 
Email address  
atanner@herefordshire.gov.uk  

  
 

Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain  
 

Unlike the 2005/06 budget, there was no formal corporate exercise carried out by 
the Council to identify cash efficiency savings for 2004/05.  Services have been 
expected to operate within their cash limited budgets and secure ongoing 
performance improvements within those resources available. 
 
Progress was made, however, during the year on putting the building blocks in 
place for future efficiency gains and these included the onset of property and 
accommodation reviews and the corporate Service Improvement Programme. 

 

  

Quality 
Cross 
Check 
Met? 

2004/05 
annual 
efficiency 
gains (£) 

...of 
which 
related 
to capital 
spend 
(£) 

...of 
which 
related 
to other 
spend 
(£) 

...of 
which 
cashable 
(£) 

Yes 0     0 

Adult Social Services 

Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
The proportion of older people living people 
being helped to live independently fell during 
2004/05 thus making it difficult to show efficiency 
gains within this statement. Considerable work 
was carried out during the year, however, within 
the areas of care commissioning and securing 
operational improvements to achieve significant 
gains in 2005/06. These are very much evident in 
the forward looking statement. 

  
Quality cross-check notes:  

Children's Services Yes 1,066,144     523,964 

3



 

Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
The focus on generating efficiency gains within 
the looked after children area has been on 
increasing performance in three core areas 
being: 
 
Increasing stability of placements, improving KS4 
attainment and increasing the proportion of care 
leavers in education employment or training.
 
The LEA has been able to make some significant 
cash releasing savings through a rigorous review 
of school transport with subsequent 
improvements in routing and scheduling. 

 

 
Quality cross-check notes: For Looked after 
Children improvements on Performance 
Assessment Framework (PAF) indicators 1,2 and 
4 have been compared to the financial outturn in 
these specific areas.
 
For school transport weighted average reduction 
in costs per rider have been calculated and these 
on average are £83. 
 

Yes 60,000     60,000 
Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
Reduction in management fee to leisure 
contractor (Halo). This has been achieved with 
no diminution in service through the investment 
at the outset of the contract in 'leisure 
professionals' to ensure operational efficiencies 
and business growth. Culture and Sport 

Quality cross-check notes: User number figures 
from Halo internal management information 
systems increased by 9% from 2003/04 to 
2004/05. 
2003/04 - 1,080,550
2004/05 - 1,177,930 

Yes 356,730     0 Environmental Services 
Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
Significant performance gains have been 
achieved within the Waste service mainly as a 
result of the ongoing policy to increase domestic 
waste recycling through house collections of 
recyclables. Although there has been a sizeable 
increase in net expenditure within street 
cleansing appreciable performance gains have 
resulted from the new service delivery 
arrangements with Jarvis. 

4



 

 Quality cross-check notes: BVPI 82a -
percentage of the total tonnage of household 
waste arising which have been recycled.
BVPI 199a - proportion of land and highways 
having litter and detritus below an acceptable 
level. 

Yes 0 0 0 0 
Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
Efficiency gains have been gained within local 
transport, specifically within highways 
maintenance following the signing of the joint 
venture contract with Jarvis. They can only be 
estimated, however at this time owing to the 
changes in methodology on measuring road 
condition.  
The contract was very much in its infancy during 
2004/05 and the operational efficiencies will not 
be fully realised until the current year and these 
have been reflected in the forward looking 
statement. 

Local transport 

Quality cross-check notes:  
Yes 13,300 0 13,300 13,300 

Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
The focus on efficiency gains has been within the 
administration of renovation and improvement 
grants and other private sector renewal. LA social housing 
Quality cross-check notes: Improvement in BVPI 
62 for percentage of private sector dwellings 
made fit or demolished.
Reduction in net expenditure within this area of 
Strategic Housing. 

Yes 0     0 
Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain:  Non-school educational services 
Quality cross-check notes:  

Yes 0     0 
Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain:  Supporting people 
Quality cross-check notes:  

Yes 0     0 
Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain:  Homelessness 
Quality cross-check notes:  

Other cross-cutting efficiencies not covered above 
Yes 366,000     366,000 

Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
Active treasury management has resulted in a 
major rescheduling of long-term debt by taking 
advantage of new borrowing instruments, in 
particular Lender Option Borrower Options 
(LOBOs). 

Corporate services 

Quality cross-check notes: Reduction in revenue 
outturn for financing transaction expenditure 

Procurement Yes 0     0 

5



 

Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain:   
Quality cross-check notes:  

Yes 0     0 
Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain:  Productive time 
Quality cross-check notes:  

Yes 33,500     33,500 
Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
Introduction of e-recruitment and e-payments. Transactions 
Quality cross-check notes: Reduction in specific 
ICT Services budget. 

Yes 0     0 
Activities undertaken to achieve efficiency gain:  Miscellaneous efficiencies 
Quality cross-check notes:  

TOTAL   1,895,674 0 13,300 996,764 
 

6



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jane Jones, Director of Policy and Community on 01432 260042 

CORPORATEPERFORMANCEASSESSMENT10.doc  

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT -
SUBMISSION OF SELF ASSESSMENTS 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY:  
CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE  

AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

CABINET  9TH JUNE, 2005 
 
Wards Affected 

No Wards are affected 

Purpose 

To agree the arrangements for the submission of the self assessments relating to the 
Corporate Assessments (CA) and Joint Area Review (JAR) as the first stage of preparation 
for the Corporate Performance Assessment (CPA). 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision   

Recommendations 

THAT  (a)  Progress on the Corporate Self Assessment and the arrangements for 
its completion by the due date of the 18th July, taking account of the 
necessity to link closely Corporate and JAR preparation, be noted. 

and 

 (b)  submission of the JAR Self Assessment and the Youth Service Self 
Assessment including scores, subject to any changes arising from the 
planned external challenge, be approved. 

Reasons 

Self Assessments are the initial requirement in preparation for the Corporate Performance 
Assessment 

Considerations 

1. As Cabinet will be aware Herefordshire will be one of the first eight Authorities to 
undergo a revised Corporate Performance Assessment during the Autumn of 2005.  
The Corporate Performance score will arise out of the Corporate Assessment and 
the Joint Area Review.  Whilst the Corporate Assessment focuses on the corporate 
capacity of the authority the Joint Area Review is an inspection of Children’s Services 
in Herefordshire, whether they be delivered by the Council or not.  Additionally 
because there has been no OFSTED of the Youth Service, this will receive particular 
attention and a  separate self assessment needs to be prepared.  The guidance for 

AGENDA ITEM 4

7



this was confirmed at the beginning of May.     

2. Various elements of both inspections are being piloted and the authority is learning 
as much as possible about the process from these sources. However, the first ‘whole’ 
pilots will only take place in June of this year and therefore our ability to learn from 
these will be limited. 

3. The Corporate Assessment will provide the context for many of the judgements 
relating to the JAR, and in turn the JAR will provide, in particular, field work and 
conclusions on the shared priorities in relation to Children and Young People in the 
Corporate assessment. The interrelationship of the two inspections is explored more 
fully in the diagram attached as appendix 1. 

4. The Authority has taken the view that the preparation for the inspection should be 
integrated in a single project.  Contained within the project plan are a number of 
actions relating to the Council’s journey to improvement for example, reviewing  the 
Performance Management Framework, developing the Use of Resources statement, 
categorisation of partnership and projects.  It is consistent with Prince 2 methodology 
and coordinated by the Director of Policy and Community reporting regularly to the 
Chief Executive and Leader.  Over the course of the next few months there will be 
regular reports to Cabinet. 

5. The first stage in preparation for both inspections is the submission of self 
assessment documents.  In the case of the JAR the date for submission is 13th 
June: the corporate assessment must be completed by the 18th July.  Both self 
assessments need to ensure partnership support.  For the JAR this is secured 
through the Children and Young People’s Partnership Board which considered an 
earlier draft on Monday 23rd May and for the Corporate Assessment the 
Herefordshire Partnership Board which will meet during the course of June.  An 
additional requirement this time is that self-assessments need to be scored. 

6. Clearly given the interdependence of the two inspections the documents must be 
consistent in terms of background, prioritisation and style.  This is not easy to 
achieve since the requirements for the JAR have been prescribed since the middle of 
March but the outline of the Corporate Assessment has only been available since the 
end of April.   

7. The Team Leader for the JAR, John Cordwell has already visited Herefordshire.  The 
Team Leader for the Corporate Assessment was announced at the end of last week.  
He is Gary Stevens who is currently the Relationship Manager for the Audit 
Commission for Coventry, Dudley and Solihull.  He is likely to make initial contact 
with Herefordshire shortly and planning will begin in earnest for the inspection which 
will take place from the 26th September to 7th October.  However, for the JAR there 
will be an additional analysis week, fieldwork and a consultation with users of the 
services prior to the actual inspection.  The timetable for the CPA is attached as 
Appendix 2. 

Alternative Options 

None 

8



Risk Management 

Dates for submission of the documents are clearly set out in the timetable published by the 
Audit Commission.   

Consultees 

Children and Young People’s Partnership Board, Herefordshire Partnership Board 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

9



10



 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on

P
re

se
nt

at
io

n

A
m

bi
tio

n

P
rio

rit
is

at
io

n

C
ap

ac
ity

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

m
an

ag
em

en
t

H
ea

lth
ie

r
co

m
m

un
iti

es

S
af

er
 

an
d 

st
ro

ng
er

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es

O
ut

co
m

es
 

fo
r o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e

O
ut

co
m

es
 

fo
r C

&
Y

P

Corporate Assessment

Joint Area Review

A
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

ec
on

om
ic

 
w

el
l b

ei
ng

M
ak

in
g 

a 
po

si
tiv

e
co

nt
ri

bu
tio

n

E
nj

oy
in

g 
&

ac
hi

ev
in

g

S
ta

yi
ng

 s
af

e

B
ei

ng
 h

ea
lth

y

S
tr

at
eg

y 
/ 

C
or

po
ra

te
M

an
ag

em
en

t /
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
/

V
FM

Fi
nd

in
gs

P
ar
ag
ra
ph
s/
ex
am

pl
es

Fi
nd

in
gs

S
er
vi
ce

m
an
ag
em

en
t

Lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

 o
r 

ph
ys

ic
al

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s

Fi
nd
in
gs

P
ar
ag
ra
ph
s/
ex
am

pl
es

P
ar
ag
ra
ph
s/
ex
am

pl
es

M
ap

pi
ng

 th
e 

ju
dg

em
en

ts

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

11



12



APPENDIX 2 

CPA TIMETABLE 
 
Timelines for the Joint Corporate Assessment-Joint Area 
Review 
 

Stage September 2005 
 

First meeting/conference 21 March 2005 
 

Self Assessment returned (JAR) 13 June 2005 
 

Set up meeting 
(joint) 

From: 6 June 2005 

Self assessment returned (CA) By: 18 July 2005 
 

Analysis week (JAR) 5 September 2005 
to 9 September 
2005 
 

Challenge meeting (CA) 9 September 2005 
 

Fieldwork 26 September 2005 
to 7 October 2005 
 

Report writing 10 October 2005 to 
21 October 2005 
 

`Draft report sent to council/partners for 
comment 

4 November 2005 
 

Comment received by inspectorates By: 18 November 
2005 
 

Feedback meeting 2 December 2005 
 

Publication 15th December 
2005 
 

 

13



14



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from Human Resources 

 on 01432 383055 

PAYcabreport0.doc  

PAY AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT  
STRATEGY 2005-8 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILTY: CORPORATE AND CUSTOMER 
SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES 

CABINET 9TH JUNE, 2005  
 
Wards Affected 

None  

Purpose 

To consider and approve the Council’s Pay and Workforce Development Strategy 2005-8, 
plus operating plan for 2005-6. 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision.   

Recommendations 

That the Council’s Pay and Workforce Development Strategy 2005-8 and the Operating 
Plan for 2005-6 be approved. 

Reasons 

The Council has put in place a corporate planning process linked directly to its performance 
management framework that enables it to be clear about its priorities and how they will be 
achieved. An important element to achieving these priorities is the implementation of the Pay 
and Workforce Development Strategy which sets out the Human Resource themes and 
actions to be addressed. 

Considerations 

1. In order to meet the public service targets over the next few years, the Employers 
Organisation, in conjunction with the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister has set out 
a challenging agenda for local government in the shape of a national Pay and 
Workforce Strategy for Local Government focusing on five key priority areas. This 
Strategy challenged local authorities to develop local workforce development plans to 
be in place by March 2005. The national Strategy’s five key themes are: 

• Developing leadership capacity – among both officers and members, including 
attracting effective leaders from outside the sector; 

• Developing the skills and capacity of the workforce – across the corporate centre 
of authorities, specific services, management and front line workforce; 

• Developing the organisation, including equality and diversity issues – to achieve 

AGENDA ITEM 5

15



excellence in people and performance management, partnership working, and 
efficient delivery of services; 

• Resourcing local government – ensuring authorities recruit, train and retain the 
employees they need;  

• Pay and Rewards – having pay and reward structures that attract, retain and 
develop a skilled and flexible workforce, while achieving value for money in 
service delivery. 

2. The Council’s Pay and Workforce Development Strategy 2005-8 adopts the EO’s 
themes as key areas that Council needs to address. There is an added emphasis in 
the Council’s Strategy on ensuring workable pay, reward and recognition structures to 
help recruit, motivate, and retain the employees the Council needs to deliver its 
services in the aftermath of Job Evaluation and Single Status implementation. This is 
likely to remain a key focus for several years. 

3. The Strategy has been developed in conjunction with the development of the Council’s 
Corporate Plan. Activities within each key theme are interlinked and have been 
designed to help support delivery of the Corporate Plan. The Strategy aims to ensure 
the Council: 

• has the right people in the right places, with the right skills, to deliver the agenda 
and priorities set out in the Corporate Plan – improved services with greater 
efficiency and better customer focus; 

• is well-placed to respond to environmental and societal changes, and emerging 
technology; 

• meets its statutory obligations as an employer, and where possible exceeds 
those to demonstrate best and leading edge practice as the largest local 
employer; 

• becomes an employer of choice amongst those seeking employment and career 
opportunities. 

4. This Strategy replaces the former Strategy for Developing and Improving Human 
Resources 2002-5 which set the human resources agenda for the past three years. 
79% of planned actions were completed, with 10% no longer relevant, 11% to be 
carried forward as part of the Pay and Workforce Development Strategy for 2005-8 
(including development of career pathways). Highlights from that Strategy include: 

• Job Evaluation and Single Status implemented; 

• Reduced levels of sickness absence – 7.16 days per annum per FTE in 2004 
compared with 9.32 in 2001; 

• Improved numbers of females in top 5% of wage earners – 42.4% in 2004 against 
22.7% in 2001; 

• Reduced turnover –10.6% in 2004 against 13% in 2001; 

• Improved Staff Review and Development completion – 71% in 2004 against 52% 
in 2001; 

16



• Improved attendance at induction – 73% in 2004 against 21% in 2001; 

• Establishment of a graduate trainee scheme; 

•  Management competencies developed and implementation begun with an e-
enabled 360 degree assessment process for the Council’s Key Managers. 

Risk Management 

The risks are contained in the Pay and Workforce Development Strategy. 

Consultees 

Senior Managers, Employees (via Staff Opinion Survey), Recognised Trades Unions, Race 
Equality Staff Group. 

Background Papers 

None identified 

Appendices 

Pay and Workforce Development Strategy 2005-8 

17



18



Pay and Workforce Development Strategy v12 2005-8 

Human Resources Page 1 31/05/2005 

 

 

Pay and Workforce 
Development Strategy  

2005-2008 
 

 

Action for a better  
Herefordshire  
 
…Putting people first 
…Preserving our heritage 
…Promoting our county 
…Providing for our communities 
…Protecting our future 
 

Quality life in a quality county 

19



Pay and Workforce Development Strategy v12 2005-8 

Human Resources Page 2 31/05/2005 

 

 

Pay and Workforce Development Strategy  
 
 
Contents 
 
Foreword by the Cabinet Member for Human Resources 
 
 

1. Introduction 
2. Setting the Scene 
3. The Challenges 
4. Risks and Mitigation 
5. Key Partners 
6. Resourcing the Strategy 
7. Equality Impact Assessment 
8. Monitoring and Review 
 

 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Workforce profile information 
Appendix 2 – Detailed 3 Year Strategic Plan, and 1 Year Action (Operational) Plan 
 
 

20



Pay and Workforce Development Strategy v12 2005-8 

Human Resources Page 3 31/05/2005 

 
Foreword 
 
 
 
As Cabinet Member for Human Resources, I pay tribute to the hard work and 
achievements of the past years.  It has been a challenging time. The next three 
years are set to be no different. 
 
This Pay and Workforce Development Strategy aims to ensure that the priorities for 
human resources across the Council combine together to support and deliver the 
Corporate Plan.  This means that it is vital that the Council has employees with the 
right skills, knowledge and abilities. It makes the link between investing in people 
and improved services to the community. As the County’s largest employer, it 
exemplifies the value and wisdom of this investment.  
 
I believe that the improvements delivered as a result of having this Strategy in 
place will make a real, positive, and lasting difference.  I am confident that each 
and every one of us will play a part in making this happen.  
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR Mrs J. P. FRENCH 
CABINET MEMBER (CORPORATE AND CUSTOMER SERVICES AND HUMAN 
RESOURCES)  
May 2005 
 

21



Pay and Workforce Development Strategy v12 2005-8 

Human Resources Page 4 31/05/2005 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council has set out a Corporate Plan that says what the Council will do over 

the next three years to play its full part in continuing to turn the Herefordshire Plan 
into a reality. 

 
1.2 This Pay and Workforce Development Strategy is designed to support delivery of 

the Council’s Corporate Plan commitments and organisational priorities, including 
the Council’s diversity agenda, and Statement of Style, Direction and Values. It is 
the basis for testing the Council’s performance in relation to the effective strategic 
management of human resources. 

 
1.3 This Pay and Workforce Development Strategy sets out what the Council will do 

with its resource development in order to tackle priorities that have arisen as a 
result of implementing national agreements, and responding to wider 
environmental and legislative changes e.g. equal pay, employment legislation, 
central government requirements of local government. 

 
1.4 The Strategy itself is set out in two parts. Part One shows the broad intentions over 

a three-year time frame. Part Two provides a detailed plan of action for the first 
year of the lifetime of the Strategy. Any emerging changes will be reflected in a 
revised annual operating plan to be published at the start of the 2006-7 financial 
year. 

 
2.  Setting the Scene   
 
2.1 The Council is the largest local employer in a rural county with a geographically 

dispersed population of some 176,900 citizens. 
 
2.2 The trend on direct employees is downward. There were 5,356 employees in 2004 

against 6,263 in 2001.   There has been growth in schools (teachers and support 
workers) with 822 more employees. Planning, Highways and Transportation have also 
seen an increase. The Council has outsourced some direct services through SHAW 
Homes, Herefordshire Jarvis Services, HALO (Leisure Trust), and Herefordshire Housing 
(Housing Company). 

 
2.3 Economically active people in the local population aged 18-24 is around 10.8%, 

against a Council workforce figure of 5.23%. This figure has remained broadly static for 
several years. Around 85% of school leavers stay in full time education. The remaining 
age groups broadly reflect the local population.  The local population is set to grow, 
but with an outward migration of younger people, and an inward migration of those 
with families, and older people.  This will inevitably impact on Council services - such 
as those for older people. 

 
2.4 Employed females in the top 5% of employees have risen from 22.7% to 42.4% since 

2001. The Council’s workforce profile is currently under-represented  
• numbers employed declaring a disability as defined in the DDA; 
• numbers employed from black/ minority ethnic groups. 

 

22



Pay and Workforce Development Strategy v12 2005-8 

Human Resources Page 5 31/05/2005 

2.5  The rate of employees leaving is reducing, and is below average for the sector at 9% 
in 2004, against 16% in 2001.  Just over three quarters (76%) of leavers, leave 
voluntarily. The remainder leave for retirement or other reasons. There are ‘hotspots’ of 
hard to fill vacancies in Planning, Development Control, Trading Standards, 
Environmental Health, Youth Service, Social Care. A recent audit of recruitment 
processes has shown that improvements leading to significant efficiency gains can be 
made both in terms of processes and direct and indirect expenditure. 

 
2.6 Sickness absence rates are among the lowest throughout local government and 

reduced to 7.99 days per full time employee per year in 2004, against 9.32 days in 
2001. 

 
2.7 The Council invests on average, around 2% of payroll or £250 per employee per year 

(gross training expenditure) in formal training and development; the median 
investment per year for local government ranges between £162 and £328 per 
employee (People Skills Scoreboard 2004, Employers Organisation for Local 
Government www.lg-employers.gov.uk ). 

 
2.8 Staff Opinion Survey response rates are above average for the sector between 38% 

and 48% annually. Views from the Survey together with Exit Survey information have 
been used to inform the Strategy.  

3. The Challenges 
The strategic human resource implications for the Council centre on a number of key 
themes (in tandem with modernising the Human Resource service) to better support 
effective and improved service delivery: 
 

o Supporting organisational development to take account of the Children’s Act, and 
Every Child Matters, new ways of working (including e-working, flexible working), 
working across boundaries, and the associated skills to achieve greater flexibility 
and efficiency within a context of decreasing resources; 

o Continuing to develop effective leadership and management skills (including 
people and project management); 

o Maintaining and enhancing levels of motivation, developing appropriate pay, 
reward and recognition structures in the challenging transition through equal pay 
and single status; 

o Ensuring the Council is effectively resourced to meet its service delivery challenges, 
with focussed and well managed activity to tackle under-representation, and to 
tackle recruitment and retention ‘hot spots’ in Education, Social Care and 
Environment; 

o Comprehensive training and skills development linked to improved performance 
and delivery of the Council’s objectives. 
 

4. Risks and mitigation 
The main risks inherent in delivering the Pay and Workforce Development Strategy, and 
mitigation are summarised as follows: 
 
 RISK MITIGATION RISK OWNER 
level of resources 
available to deliver 

i) forward planning and 
prioritisation 

Head of HR 
Cabinet 

23



Pay and Workforce Development Strategy v12 2005-8 

Human Resources Page 6 31/05/2005 

the Strategy ii) designated Cabinet Member 
lead for Human Resources 
(HR) and Support Services 

Member for 
Human 
Resources 

effective and 
efficient use of 
resources 

i) forecasting necessary resources  
ii) seeking external funding wherever 
possible  
iii) working with partners to maximise 
output 

Head of HR 

employee 
motivation (hence 
performance) falls  

Career, Reward and Recognition 
processes in place 

Head of HR 

reputation – as the 
County’s largest 
local employer 

i) make best use of web and advertising 
and publicity opportunities press/media 

Head of HR 

 

5. Key Partners 
In delivering this Strategy, the Council will seek to work with and engage its partners at 
both local, regional and national levels, and wherever possible to work collaboratively 
with partners for greater efficiency. The Council recognises that working with partners can 
add value, bring greater efficiency and increase capacity to deliver. The Council already 
delivers some key services through strategic partnerships.  
 
The Council will actively encourage and seek to develop partnerships to bring better 
value to service users.  It will also work with partners (i.e. Learning and Skills Council, 
education and training providers) to stimulate the local labour market to ensure there are 
potential employees with the appropriate skills to work in local government. An example 
of the Council’s commitment in this area is the Skills Development Partnership Agreement 
recently agreed with the local Learning and Skills Council, the Herefordshire Council, and 
the seven local authorities across Worcestershire. 

6. Resourcing the Strategy 
 
The main resources to be deployed are collective skills, knowledge and resources of the 
Human Resources function, together with its supplies and services budget; the Corporate 
Training budget; government funding for mandatory training (e.g. social care), and 
external funding for specific projects.  In addition, capacity will be built, and value added 
using training placements where appropriate, and working with key partners. The Year 
One action plan is ambitious. It will require effective management and rigorous 
prioritisation if it is to be delivered successfully.   

7.  Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Various elements of the Pay and Workforce Development Strategy are designed to make 
a direct contribution to the Council’s efforts to not unfairly discriminate against individuals 
or groups. The Strategy seeks to promote good practice and ensure the Council’s 
workforce is representative of the community it serves. Elements such as Resourcing, and 
Organisational Development make a direct and positive contribution to this agenda. An 
Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for this Strategy. 

24



Pay and Workforce Development Strategy v12 2005-8 

Human Resources Page 7 31/05/2005 

8. Monitoring and Review  
 
There will be a consistent approach to the provision and reporting of human resource 
information to Directorates, Elected Members and Committees. Progress will be 
monitored via regular reports  (in particular against performance indicators), to Chief 
Executive’s Management Team, Cabinet, and Strategic Monitoring Committee. 
 

25



Pay and Workforce Development Strategy v12 2005-8 

Human Resources Page 8 31/05/2005 

Numbers Employed 2001 - 2004 
Appendix1 

 
EMPLOYEES 2001 % 2004 % 
Full time female 1,676 27% 1555 29% 
Part time female 3,013 48% 2615 49% 
Full time male 1,277 20% 958 18% 
Part time male 297 5% 228 4% 
 6,263 100% 5,356 100% 

 
 
 
Age Profile of Workforce at 31/12/2004       
         
         
Directorate Total 16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-59 60-64 65+
Chief Executive 24 3 7 4 8 2 0 0
County Secretary & Solicitor 72 2 10 22 21 8 8 1
County Treasurer 152 8 46 55 34 7 2 0
Education 3590 175 531 1071 1142 443 165 63
Environment 440 27 97 108 123 51 27 7
Policy & Community 460 37 87 134 134 45 21 2
Social Care & Strategic Housing 693 32 81 175 220 123 58 4
Total 5431 284 859 1569 1682 679 281 77
    5.23% 15.82% 28.89% 30.97% 12.50% 5.17% 1.42%
                  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

26



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 9

 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

A
pp

en
d

ix
 2

 
Pa

y 
an

d 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
20

05
-8

 (P
ar

t O
ne

) S
ee

 P
ar

t T
w

o 
- A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 fo

r 2
00

5-
6 

C
ab

in
et

 L
ea

d:
 C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r C
or

po
ra

te
 a

nd
 C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

XM
T 

Le
ad

: H
ea

d 
of

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
To

 2
00

8 
Th

em
e 

an
d 

 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
ay

, r
ew

ar
ds

 a
n

d 
re

co
gn

it
io

n
  

 

Va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 
in

di
ca

to
r 

(V
FM

) 
to

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

Au
th

or
ity

 is
 a

bl
e 

to
 m

ot
iv

at
e 

an
d 

re
cr

ui
t 

st
af

f 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s 
of

 
af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 

R
em

ov
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 b

ar
rie

rs
 t

o 
sc

ho
ol

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 r
em

od
el

lin
g 

 

M
or

al
e 

an
d 

m
ot

iv
at

io
n 

su
ff

er
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  
Te

am
 

H
av

in
g 

pa
y 

an
d 

re
w

ar
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 th

at
 a

tt
ra

ct
, r

et
ai

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

sk
ill

ed
 a

nd
 

fle
xi

bl
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 w

hi
le

 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 in
 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

%
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 P

ay
, T

er
m

s 
an

d 
Co

nd
iti

on
s 

Pa
y 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

nd
 

fa
ci

lit
at

es
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 

Su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
st

ill
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ff

ec
te

d 
po

st
 4

 y
ea

r 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

Tu
rn

ov
er

 m
ay

 
be

 a
ff

ec
te

d 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

Ti
m

e 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  
Te

am
 

 
 

 
Re

vi
ew

 o
f 

Pa
y 

an
d 

G
ra

di
ng

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

Fa
il 

to
 

in
no

va
te

, 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
an

d 
re

te
nt

io
n 

w
or

se
n 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  
Te

am
 

H
ea

d 
of

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

 
 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

 

Pr
om

ot
e 

le
ss

on
s 

fr
om

 o
ut

co
m

es
 o

f 
pi

lo
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

n 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 

be
tw

ee
n 

oc
cu

pa
tio

ns
 

Fa
il 

to
 m

ak
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ga

in
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

jo
in

t 
w

or
ki

ng
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  
Te

am
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Po

lic
y 

Te
am

 

27



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

0 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

To
 2

00
8 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

R
es

ou
rc

in
g 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

n
m

en
t 

 
%

 o
f y

ou
ng

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
(u

nd
er

 2
5)

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 in

 
C

ou
nc

il 

R
ed

uc
e 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 s

ki
ll 

sh
or

ta
ge

s 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
ca

re
er

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 f

or
 

lo
w

er
 p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 

Pr
ov

id
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 o
n 

se
tt

in
g 

up
 c

ar
ee

r 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

in
 a

re
as

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

or
 

pr
ed

ic
te

d 
sk

ill
 s

ho
rt

ag
es

 

Fa
il 

to
 b

al
an

ce
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 

pr
of

ile
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  
Te

am
 

 H
ea

d 
of

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

En
su

re
 th

e 
Co

un
ci

l r
ec

ru
its

 
an

d 
re

ta
in

s 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

it 
ne

ed
s 

 
Re

du
ce

d 
Sk

ill
s 

sh
or

ta
ge

s 
&

 m
or

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
im

ag
e 

of
 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ca
re

er
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 e
ff

ec
tiv

en
es

s 
of

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

ey
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

an
d 

re
te

nt
io

n 
is

su
es

 w
or

se
n 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  
Te

am
 

 
 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

ith
 

lo
ca

l p
ro

vi
de

rs
 o

f 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 jo

bs
 

 
Fa

il 
to

 
ca

pi
ta

lis
e 

on
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ga

in
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  
Te

am
 

 
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f 
yo

un
ge

r 
pe

op
le

 
em

pl
oy

ed
 in

 
Co

un
ci

l 

 
Fa

il 
to

 b
al

an
ce

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 
pr

of
ile

 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  
Te

am
 

 
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
di

ve
rs

ity
 a

cr
os

s 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 

Po
si

tiv
e 

ac
tio

n 
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 t

ar
ge

t 
gr

ou
ps

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
un

de
r 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 n

ot
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  
Te

am
 

28



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

1 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

To
 2

00
8 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

C
ap

ac
it

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 s
ki

lls
 v

ia
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

co
m

pe
te

nc
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 s
ki

lls
 

am
on

g 
ke

y 
m

an
ag

er
s 

 

Su
cc

es
si

on
 p

la
nn

in
g 

sc
he

m
e 

an
d 

a 
sy

st
em

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

hi
gh

 f
lie

rs
 in

 p
la

ce
 

La
ck

 o
f 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 

M
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
H

R
 

te
am

 

H
R
 b

ud
ge

t 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p,
 s

er
vi

ce
 

bu
dg

et
s 

D
ev

el
op

 th
e 

sk
ills

, k
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

ab
ilit

y 
of

 l
ea

de
rs

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 

in
sp

ire
, 

m
ot

iv
at

e 
ot

he
rs

 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 

St
af

f 
O

pi
ni

on
 S

ur
ve

y 
re

su
lts

 –
 k

ey
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
qu

es
tio

ns
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 t

o 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

(t
o 

be
 s

et
 

af
te

r 
ba

se
lin

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d)
 

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

Fa
il 

to
 r

ec
ru

it 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 
ca

lib
re

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

M
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
H

R
 

te
am

 

H
R
 b

ud
ge

t 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p,
 s

er
vi

ce
 

bu
dg

et
s 

 
 

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 in

 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
as

 
pa

rt
 o

f 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

fir
st

 
lin

e 
an

d 
ne

w
 

su
pe

rv
is

or
s/

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

M
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
H

R
 

te
am

 

H
R
 b

ud
ge

t 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p,
 s

er
vi

ce
 

bu
dg

et
s 

29



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

2 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

To
 2

00
8 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

Sk
ill

s 
an

d 
C

ap
ac

it
y 

of
 t

h
e 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

N
o.

 d
ay

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

pe
r 

FT
E 

 

W
id

er
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 
re

le
va

nt
 t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
In

ve
st

or
s 

in
 P

eo
pl

e 
Co

un
ci

l-
w

id
e 

Co
st

 o
f 

a 
sk

ill
s 

au
di

t 
 

Fa
il 

to
 in

ve
st

 
w

is
el

y 
in

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Te

am
 

Ex
te

rn
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
/s

of
tw

ar
e 

bo
ug

ht
 in

 t
o 

do
 s

ki
lls

 
au

di
t 

En
su

re
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
ar

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
tr

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 

m
ee

t 
Co

un
ci

l 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 

£ 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pe

r 
he

ad
 

Ke
y 

sk
ill

s 
ne

ed
ed

 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
re

 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

 

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Te

am
 

 

 
%

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ho
 

ag
re

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ne
ed

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

vi
a 

St
af

f 
R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ar
e 

m
et

 

IC
T 

sk
ill

s 
ne

ed
s 

ad
dr

es
se

d 

Ta
ck

le
 r

es
id

ua
l 

ba
si

c 
sk

ill
s 

ne
ed

s 

 
In

di
vi

du
al

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

no
t 

lin
ke

d 
to

 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Te

am
 

 

 
%

 S
ta

ff
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
in

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
12

 m
on

th
s 

10
0%

 o
f 

SR
D

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
an

nu
al

ly
 

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Te

am
 

M
an

ag
er

s 

 
 

Al
l e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
ar

e 
ac

tiv
el

y 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
ei

r 
sk

ill
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
ey

 
ar

e 
as

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
as

 
po

ss
ib

le
. 

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Te

am
 

M
an

ag
er

s 

30



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

3 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

To
 2

00
8 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

%
 d

ay
s 

lo
st

 to
 S

ic
kn

es
s 

A
bs

en
ce

 p
er

 F
TE

 

 

A 
fle

xi
bl

e,
 

he
al

th
y,

 a
nd

 
w

el
l-m

ot
iv

at
ed

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 w
ith

 
fe

w
er

 d
ay

s 
lo

st
 

to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

ta
ke

 F
le

xi
bl

e 
W

or
ki

ng
 

fo
rw

ar
d,

 r
ea

lis
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

to
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 
w

el
l-b

ei
ng

  

Ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

H
ea

d 
of

 H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

H
ea

d 
of

 I
CT

 

D
ev

el
op

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
vi

a 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l 

ag
en

ci
es

 

%
 o

f 
va

ca
nt

 p
os

ts
 

(p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

va
ca

nt
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

al
l p

os
ts

) 

Sk
ill

s 
an

d 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 
se

ni
or

 H
R
 le

ad
er

s 
ar

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
. 

Se
e 

‘R
es

ou
rc

in
g’

 
  

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Te

am
 

 

 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
Be

st
 V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 –
 e

.g
. %

 o
f 

w
om

en
 in

 t
op

 5
%

 o
f 

w
ag

e 
ea

rn
er

s,
 %

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
fr

om
 e

th
ni

c 
m

in
or

ity
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
, %

 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

de
cl

ar
in

g 
a 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

in
 t

he
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

Ch
an

ge
 is

 
m

an
ag

ed
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y,

 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

ch
an

ge
 r

ed
uc

ed
 

BM
E 

em
pl

oy
ed

 
1.

2%
 b

y 
20

06
/7

 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 in

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
1.

35
%

 b
y 

20
06

/7
 

Se
e 

‘R
es

ou
rc

in
g’

 
 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Te

am
 

M
an

ag
er

s 

 

 

31



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

4 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

 
To

 2
00

8 
Th

em
e 

an
d 

 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(c
on

t.
) 

%
 L

ab
ou

r 
Tu

rn
ov

er
 

Lo
w

er
 L

ab
ou

r 
tu

rn
ov

er
 

 

S
ee

 ‘R
es

ou
rc

in
g’

 

 

 
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
Co

un
ci

l’ 
s 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
Cu

st
om

er
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ch
ar

te
r 

(N
B 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 C
ou

nc
il 

cl
ie

nt
s/

 
cu

st
om

er
s)

 

 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
ed

 r
ol

lin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 (
an

d 
im

pa
ct

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 –

 s
ee

 E
qu

al
ity

 P
ol

ic
y)

 

 

Fa
il 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
e/

 
de

liv
er

 
cu

st
om

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Te

am
 

 
 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pr
oc

es
se

s 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

(S
er

vi
ce

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
, R

is
k,

 
Im

pa
ct

 
As

se
ss

m
en

ts
) 

 

Se
e 

ab
ov

e 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Te

am
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 L
ea

ds
 

 
 

Co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

re
 

sy
st

em
at

ic
al

ly
 

le
ar

ne
d 

fr
om

 t
o 

ge
ne

ra
te

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t  

 

Se
e 

ab
ov

e 
 

 Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
N

et
w

or
k 

G
ro

up
, 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

el
at

io
ns

 U
ni

t 

32



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

5 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

Pa
y 

an
d 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

20
05

-8
 (P

ar
t T

w
o)

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 2
00

5-
6 

C
ab

in
et

 L
ea

d:
 C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r C
or

po
ra

te
 a

nd
 C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

XM
T 

Le
ad

: H
ea

d 
of

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

20
05

-6
 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
D

ef
in

it
io

n
 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 
Ta

rg
et

 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

P
ay

, r
ew

ar
ds

 a
n

d 
re

co
gn

it
io

n
 

 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

Re
w

ar
d 

an
d 

re
co

gn
iti

on
 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

W
or

k 
to

 a
 m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 d
ep

lo
ym

en
t 

of
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ac

tio
n 

to
 d

ea
l w

ith
 jo

b 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

an
d 

si
ng

le
 s

ta
tu

s 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

po
st

 1
.4

.0
5 

Lo
w

er
 m

or
al

e 
H

um
an

 
R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 

H
av

in
g 

pa
y 

an
d 

re
w

ar
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 

th
at

 a
tt

ra
ct

, r
et

ai
n 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
sk

ill
ed

 
an

d 
fle

xi
bl

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 
w

hi
le

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 v

al
ue

 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 
st

af
f 

op
in

io
n 

su
rv

ey
 q

ue
st

io
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
re

w
ar

d 
an

d 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 

 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
de

vi
se

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 R
ew

ar
d 

an
d 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
 

 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
H

um
an

 
R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

 
 

Pa
y,

 R
ew

ar
d 

an
d 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

th
at

 
su

pp
or

ts
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l 
go

al
s 

Re
vi

ew
 m

an
ag

in
g 

pe
op

le
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
H

um
an

 
R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

 
 

An
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
Ag

re
em

en
t 

is
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

 

Pu
bl

ic
is

e 
re

vi
se

d/
ag

re
ed

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
Ag

re
em

en
t 

(in
c.

 M
an

ag
er

 G
ui

da
nc

e)
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 
re

la
tio

ns
 

w
or

se
n 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

33



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

6 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

20
05

-6
 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
D

ef
in

it
io

n
 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 
Ta

rg
et

 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

P
ay

, r
ew

ar
ds

 a
n

d 
re

co
gn

it
io

n
 

(c
on

ti
n

u
ed

) 

 
A 

w
or

ka
bl

e 
VF

M
 

in
di

ca
to

r 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
Va

lu
e 

Fo
r 

M
on

ey
 in

di
ca

to
r 

in
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
ith

 E
m

pl
oy

er
s 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
na

tio
na

lly
 a

nd
 r

eg
io

na
lly

 

U
nc

le
ar

 r
e 

co
st

 a
nd

 
va

lu
e 

of
 H

R
 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

An
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

Pa
y 

Po
lic

y 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

 
Pa

y 
po

lic
y 

dr
af

te
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 s

en
io

r 
te

am
 a

nd
 T

ra
de

 U
ni

on
s 

w
ith

 w
id

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

am
on

g 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

 

La
ck

 o
f 

cl
ar

ity
 

re
 P

ay
, 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
gr

ie
va

nc
es

 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

Ke
y 

po
lic

ie
s 

im
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 
m

od
er

ni
se

d 

Re
vi

se
 a

nd
 m

od
er

ni
se

 k
ey

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
Le

ga
l n

on
-

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

 

Re
vi

ew
 c

on
tr

ac
tu

al
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

An
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

pa
y 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ev
is

ed
 

D
ev

is
e 

an
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

pa
y 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
th

at
 

en
ab

le
s 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
gr

ad
es

 t
o 

be
 

un
de

rs
to

od
 a

nd
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

ca
re

er
 m

ov
em

en
t 

bo
th

 u
pw

ar
d 

an
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

oc
cu

pa
tio

na
l 

gr
ou

ps
 (

i.e
. c

or
e 

sk
ill

s/
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s)

 

M
or

al
e,

 
m

ot
iv

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

te
nt

io
n 

w
ill

 s
uf

fe
r 

 

H
R
 T

ea
m

 

Ex
te

rn
al

 
co

ns
ul

ta
nc

y 

 

 
 

 
Cr

ea
te

 g
en

er
ic

 jo
b 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 a

nd
 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
t 

ca
re

er
 p

at
hw

ay
s 

fo
r 

pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

ro
ut

es
 in

 a
ll 

jo
bs

 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 

34



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

7 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

 
20

05
-6

 
Th

em
e 

an
d 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 
In

di
ca

to
r(

s)
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

R
es

ou
rc

in
g 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

n
m

en
t 

%
 la

bo
ur

 
tu

rn
ov

er
 

 

9%
  

A 
sy

st
em

 f
or

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 s

ys
te

m
 f

or
 a

na
ly

si
ng

 
sk

ill
s/

w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

ar
ea

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

lo
ca

l a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l t
re

nd
s 

to
 in

fo
rm

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 

 R
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

pr
ob

le
m

s,
 

re
te

nt
io

n 
w

or
se

ns
 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

  
- 

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
, J

ob
 

Ce
nt

re
 P

lu
s,

 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 a
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

 

En
su

re
 th

e 
Co

un
ci

l 
re

cr
ui

ts
 a

nd
 r

et
ai

ns
 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
it 

ne
ed

s 

 
In

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
ac

tiv
ity

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 

to
 le

ad
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

Sc
op

e 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

ac
tiv

ity
 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 f
or

 im
pr

ov
ed

 u
se

 o
f 

IC
T 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
a 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

‘C
en

tr
e’

 a
nd

 
us

e 
of

 ‘p
oo

l’ 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 

 

Fa
il 

to
 m

ak
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ga

in
s 

re
 c

os
t 

an
d 

tim
e 

to
 

re
cr

ui
t 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

 
R
ev

ie
w

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

re
le

va
nt

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 f
or

 t
ho

se
 f

or
 w

ho
m

 
En

gl
is

h 
is

 a
 s

ec
on

d 
la

ng
ua

ge
 

Fa
il 

to
 b

e 
le

ga
lly

 
co

m
pl

ia
nt

 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

 
Pr

om
ot

e 
ca

re
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 a

t 
W

or
k 

D
ay

 (
M

ay
) 

an
d 

N
at

io
na

l C
ar

ee
rs

 D
ay

 
(O

ct
ob

er
) 

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
up

pl
y 

an
d 

re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 
ta

le
nt

ed
 r

ec
ru

its
 

in
 a

re
as

 w
ith

 
ac

ut
e 

sh
or

ta
ge

s 

Be
gi

n 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

fr
om

 p
ro

je
ct

 t
o 

lo
ok

 a
t 

ho
w

 t
o 

re
cr

ui
t 

an
d 

re
ta

in
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t 

Im
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 
pr

of
ile

 r
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
ag

ed
 1

8-
24

 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

, Y
ou

th
 

Se
rv

ic
es

  

 

35



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

8 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

20
05

-6
 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
D

ef
in

it
io

n
 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 
Ta

rg
et

 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

R
es

ou
rc

in
g 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

n
m

en
t 

(c
on

ti
n

u
ed

) 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 s
ch

oo
ls

, 
co

lle
ge

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
gr

ou
ps

, J
ob

 
Ce

nt
re

 P
lu

s 
an

d 
Co

nn
ex

io
ns

 

St
re

ng
th

en
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 c
ol

le
ge

s 
e.

g.
 R

oy
al

 N
at

io
na

l C
ol

le
ge

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
al

ks
, 

w
or

k 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

, m
od

er
n 

ap
pr

en
tic

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 e

xp
lo

re
 s

up
po

rt
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 t
ha

t 
m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

  

 

Im
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 
pr

of
ile

 r
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 
yo

un
ge

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

 
Ex

pl
or

e 
ho

w
 b

et
te

r 
to

 p
ub

lic
is

e 
jo

bs
 a

nd
 

ca
re

er
s,

 w
ha

t 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l d
oe

s 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

 
 

 
 

 
Em

be
d 

N
ew

 D
ea

l P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

 
Co

ns
id

er
 a

 T
ra

in
ee

sh
ip

 s
ch

em
e 

fo
r 

16
-2

4 
ye

ar
 o

ld
s 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

 

 
 

  
Co

ns
id

er
 a

 ‘B
ac

k 
to

 w
or

k 
ta

st
er

’ s
ch

em
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

un
de

r 
30

s 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

A 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
ro

le
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 
he

ld
 

R
ev

ie
w

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 r

ol
es

 o
f 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

su
pp

or
t 

st
af

f,
 w

ith
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 f

or
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

 

 
%

 o
f 

bl
ac

k 
an

d 
et

hn
ic

 m
in

or
ity

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
nd

 
%

 d
ec

la
rin

g 
a 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

0.
75

%
 B

M
E 

 

1%
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 

 

Re
m

ov
e 

kn
ow

n 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 t

o 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
vi

a 
a 

co
nc

er
te

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 
Im

ba
la

nc
e 

in
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 

pr
of

ile
 a

s 
re

ga
rd

s 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

36



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 1

9 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

 
20

05
-6

 
Th

em
e 

an
d 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 
In

di
ca

to
r(

s)
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

C
ap

ac
it

y 

%
 K

ey
 M

an
ag

er
s 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

m
pe

te
nc

y 

50
%

 o
f 

Ke
y 

M
an

ag
er

s 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

co
m

pe
te

nc
y 

ris
in

g 
to

 7
5%

, 
an

d 
10

0%
. 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
ba

se
lin

e 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 3
60

 
de

gr
ee

 c
om

pe
te

nc
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t,

 w
ith

 
st

ag
ed

 p
ro

ce
ss

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

co
ve

r 
ot

he
r 

m
an

ag
er

s;
 c

la
rif

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ha

t 
is

 
m

ea
nt

 b
y 

‘K
ey

 M
an

ag
er

’ 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

sk
ill

s 
an

d 
ca

pa
bi

lit
y 

w
or

se
ns

 

M
an

ag
er

s,
 

Ch
ie

f 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e’

s 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Te

am
, H

um
an

 
R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

D
ev

el
op

 
th

e 
sk

ill
s,

 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

ab
ili

ty
 

of
 l

ea
de

rs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 
Co

un
ci

l 
to

 
in

sp
ire

, 
m

ot
iv

at
e 

ot
he

rs
 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

Co
un

ci
l 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
  

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 s

et
 o

ut
 a

s 
an

 e
as

y 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

‘p
ac

ka
ge

’ w
ith

 c
le

ar
 li

nk
s 

to
 S

RD
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ac
tiv

ity
, d

ef
in

iti
on

 o
f 

w
ha

t 
w

e 
m

ea
n 

by
 L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
at

 a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
m

an
ag

er
 

in
du

ct
io

n 
 

Sc
op

e 
w

ith
 m

an
ag

er
s 

an
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 

in
du

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
ne

w
/n

ew
ly

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 

m
an

ag
er

s/
 s

up
er

vi
so

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

gu
id

an
ce

 
on

 c
om

pe
te

nc
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

In
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 

m
an

ag
er

 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
%

 r
es

po
ns

es
 t

o 
H

SE
 c

ha
ng

e 
qu

es
tio

ns
 in

 
St

af
f 

O
pi

ni
on

 
Su

rv
ey

 

60
%

 a
gr

ee
 t

o 
th

e 
H

SE
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 
Ac

tio
ns

 t
o 

en
ab

le
 c

ur
re

nt
 le

ad
er

s/
m

an
ag

er
s 

to
 e

ff
ec

tiv
el

y 
m

an
ag

e 
ch

an
gi

ng
 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
(a

ls
o 

se
e 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t)

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ab

se
nc

e 
le

ve
ls

 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

37



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 2

0 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

20
05

-6
 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
D

ef
in

it
io

n
 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 
Ta

rg
et

 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

(c
on

ti
n

u
ed

) 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

m
an

ag
er

 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
 

D
ev

el
op

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 t

o 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
(in

c 
pa

ck
ag

e)
 f

or
 m

an
ag

er
s 

– 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

tim
e 

to
 r

ec
ru

it,
 w

he
re

 a
dv

er
tis

e,
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
m

et
ho

ds
 e

tc
. 

In
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 

m
an

ag
er

 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 

M
an

ag
er

s,
 

Ca
bi

ne
t,

 C
hi

ef
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e’
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

, H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

Va
lu

e 
of

 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ss
es

se
d 

As
se

ss
 v

al
ue

 o
f 

LS
C 

fu
nd

ed
 p

ilo
t 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

In
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

As
 a

bo
ve

, p
lu

s 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

Sk
ill

s 
Co

un
ci

l 

 

 
 

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 

D
up

lic
at

io
n,

 
la

ck
 o

f 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

ga
in

s 

As
 a

bo
ve

, p
lu

s 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Au
th

or
iti

es
 

G
ro

up
 

 

 
 

Pr
op

os
al

 f
or

 a
n 

‘a
sp

iri
ng

 
m

an
ag

er
’ 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

Co
ns

id
er

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r 

as
pi

rin
g 

m
an

ag
er

s,
 

an
d 

th
os

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 h

av
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 

La
ck

 o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
  

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ne
ed

s 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

Re
vi

ew
 L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ne

ed
s 

fo
r 

Se
ni

or
 T

ea
m

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
As

 a
bo

ve
, p

lu
s 

Co
un

ty
 S

ec
. 

an
d 

So
lic

ito
r 

 

 
 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ct

io
n 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 s
et

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
  

as
se

ss
ed

 

As
se

ss
 v

al
ue

 o
f 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

ac
tio

n 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

Fa
il 

to
 r

ea
lis

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 

cr
os

s-
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

38



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 2

1 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

 
20

05
-6

 
Th

em
e 

an
d 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 
In

di
ca

to
r(

s)
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

Sk
ill

s 
an

d 
C

ap
ac

it
y 

of
 t

h
e 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

%
 S

ta
ff

 R
ev

ie
w

 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

85
%

 

Sk
ill

s 
Au

di
t 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

Co
nd

uc
t 

a 
sk

ill
s 

au
di

t,
 id

en
tif

y 
ne

ed
 f

or
 

N
VQ

s,
 m

ak
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 f
or

 
ad

dr
es

si
ng

 g
ap

s 

Sk
ill

s 
ga

ps
 

no
t 

ad
dr

es
se

d 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

En
su

re
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
ar

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
tr

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 

m
ee

t C
ou

nc
il 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

%
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t 

ce
nt

ra
l i

nd
uc

tio
n 

85
%

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
, c

ar
ee

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 s

ki
lls

 p
at

hw
ay

 f
or

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

us
in

g 
co

re
 s

ki
lls

 f
or

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

lin
ke

d 
to

 n
ew

 p
ay

 a
nd

 g
ra

di
ng

 (
Se

e 
al

so
 t

he
 P

ay
 

se
ct

io
n 

re
 g

en
er

ic
 jo

b 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 a
nd

 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

t c
ar

ee
r 

pa
th

w
ay

s 
fo

r 
pr

og
re

ss
io

n 
ro

ut
es

 in
 a

ll 
jo

bs
) 

Le
ss

 f
le

xi
bi

lit
y 

in
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 
H

um
an

 
R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

Ex
te

rn
al

 
co

ns
ul

ta
nc

y 

 

 
£ 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

pe
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

/F
TE

 
Ta

rg
et

 t
o 

be
 s

et
 

on
ce

 b
as

el
in

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
ba

se
lin

e 
fo

r 
m

in
im

um
 t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

- 
da

ys
 p

er
 

em
pl

oy
ee

/£
 p

er
 F

TE
 

Fa
il 

to
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 

va
lu

e 
of

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
   

Ca
re

er
s 

an
d 

ca
re

er
 p

at
hs

, 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

n 
ro

ut
es

 m
or

e 
vi

si
bl

e 

R
un

 a
nn

ua
l Y

ou
r 

Ca
re

er
, Y

ou
r 

Li
fe

, Y
ou

r 
Fu

tu
re

 e
ve

nt
s.

  
M

or
al

e 
an

d 
m

ot
iv

at
io

n 
su

ff
er

 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

su
pp

ly
 o

f 
su

pp
or

t 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

Es
se

nt
ia

l S
ki

lls
 

(li
te

ra
cy

, 
nu

m
er

ac
y,

 I
CT

) 

In
cr

ea
se

 c
ap

ac
ity

 t
o 

dr
iv

e 
IC

T 
lit

er
ac

y 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
dr

iv
e 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

(I
EG

),
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 t
he

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
Co

m
pu

te
r 

D
riv

in
g 

Li
ce

ns
e 

ad
op

te
d 

as
 t

he
 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
in

 2
00

4.
 

 

U
na

bl
e 

to
 

de
liv

er
 

m
od

er
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 d
ue

 
to

 la
ck

 o
f 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

sk
ill

s 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

39



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 2

2 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

20
05

-6
 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
D

ef
in

it
io

n
 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 
Ta

rg
et

 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

Sk
ill

s 
an

d 
C

ap
ac

it
y 

of
 t

h
e 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

(c
on

ti
n

u
ed

) 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

up
po

rt
 

in
 p

la
ce

 f
or

 
es

se
nt

ia
l s

ki
lls

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

Pu
bl

ic
is

e,
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r 

Es
se

nt
ia

l 
Sk

ill
s 

su
pp

or
t,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
at

 le
as

t 
on

e 
R
et

ur
n 

to
 L

ea
rn

 (
R
TL

) 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s 
la

ck
 b

as
ic

 
sk

ill
s 

fo
r 

m
od

er
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ac

tic
e 

Sc
op

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
fo

r 
m

an
ag

er
s 

in
 p

eo
pl

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

ac
tic

es
 

U
nn

ec
es

sa
ry

 
tu

rn
ov

er
 

in
cr

ea
se

s 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

 
Id

en
tif

y 
tr

ai
ne

e 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
in

 
ke

y 
sk

ill
s 

sh
or

ta
ge

 a
re

as
 (

En
v.

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 T

S,
 S

oc
ia

l 
Ca

re
, Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

) 

La
ck

 o
f 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
su

pp
ly

 o
f 

sk
ill

ed
 

re
cr

ui
ts

  

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

*
Se

ct
or

 a
ve

ra
ge

 d
at

a 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
O

pi
ni

on
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

Co
m

pa
ny

, f
ro

m
 2

00
4 

Su
rv

ey
s.

 

%
 re

sp
on

se
 ra

te
 

to
 S

ta
ff 

O
pi

ni
on

 
S

ur
ve

y 

48
%

* 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 
D

iv
er

si
ty

 is
su

es
  

Co
m

m
en

ce
 r

ol
l-o

ut
 o

f 
ta

rg
et

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 

di
ve

rs
ity

 a
nd

 e
qu

al
ity

 t
ra

in
in

g 
fo

r 
m

em
be

rs
, 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

(t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

em
be

dd
in

g 
in

 
ke

y 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

su
ch

 
as

 
in

du
ct

io
n,

 S
RD

, s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g)
 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

st
at

ut
or

y 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

  

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

Ac
tio

n 
on

 a
 w

ay
 

fo
rw

ar
d 

ag
re

ed
 

Co
ns

id
er

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
sk

ill
s 

Fa
il 

to
 m

ak
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ga

in
s 

ne
ed

ed
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ac
tiv

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
 a

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Po
lic

y 
– 

in
cl

ud
es

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 a

 p
ro

ce
ss

 t
o 

ca
pt

ur
e 

al
l 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
n 

ba
se

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
, a

nd
 h

ow
 t

he
 

Co
un

ci
l ‘

ce
le

br
at

es
 s

uc
ce

ss
’ 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ac

tiv
ity

 n
ot

 
fo

cu
se

d 
on

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

40



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 2

3 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

20
05

-6
 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
D

ef
in

it
io

n
 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 
Ta

rg
et

 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

Sk
ill

s 
an

d 
C

ap
ac

it
y 

of
 t

h
e 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

(c
on

ti
n

u
ed

) 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 u

se
 o

f 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 f

or
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 

Ru
n 

a 
pi

lo
t 

fo
r 

e-
le

ar
ni

ng
 (

Le
ar

ni
ng

 P
oo

l) 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 f
or

 f
ur

th
er

 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 u

se
 

Fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ga

in
s 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

IC
T 

Se
rv

ic
e 

 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
cu

st
om

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 

pr
oc

es
se

s/
sk

ill
s 

 

Co
ns

id
er

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 f

or
 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 s
ki

lls
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t,

 a
nd

 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 r
el

ev
an

t 
N

VQ
s 

Cu
st

om
er

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
St

an
da

rd
s 

no
t 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

Cl
ar

ify
 f

ur
th

er
 w

ho
 s

ho
ul

d 
ge

t 
an

 S
RD

 
w

he
n,

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 t

o 
ne

w
 s

ta
rt

er
s 

In
di

vi
du

al
s 

no
t 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

s 
ca

rr
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ne
ed

s 

Se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

s 
au

di
te

d 
re

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ne

ed
s 

La
ck

 o
f 

fo
cu

s 
to

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

 

 
 

Is
su

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
se

d,
 

w
ith

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
re

su
lts

 

Ad
dr

es
s 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

no
n-

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 S

RD
 

is
su

es
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
H

um
an

 
R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f 

TO
PS

S 
St

ra
te

gy
 

as
se

ss
ed

 

As
se

ss
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 f

or
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
of

 t
he

 
TO

PS
S 

St
ra

te
gy

 f
or

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

se
ct

or
 a

nd
 

se
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 lo
ca

l r
es

po
ns

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

R
et

en
tio

n 
&

  
R
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

w
or

se
ns

 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

41



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 2

4 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

 
20

05
-6

 
Th

em
e 

an
d 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

 
In

di
ca

to
r(

s)
 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

%
 r

es
po

ns
es

 t
o 

St
af

f 
O

pi
ni

on
 

Su
rv

ey
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 

St
af

f 
O

pi
ni

on
 

Su
rv

ey
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 

Ac
tio

ns
 

in
 

pl
ac

e 
to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
bu

lly
in

g 
an

d 
ha

ra
ss

m
en

t 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

(w
he

th
er

 b
y 

ot
he

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

or
 b

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
cu

st
om

er
s)

 
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ab

se
nc

e 
an

d 
tu

rn
ov

er
 

le
ve

ls
. 

Li
tig

at
io

n,
 

pu
bl

ic
 im

ag
e 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

D
ev

el
op

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
vi

a 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 a

nd
 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

da
ys

 lo
st

 t
o 

si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 
pe

r 
FT

E 

%
 la

bo
ur

 
tu

rn
ov

er
 

 St
af

f 
O

pi
ni

on
 

Su
rv

ey
 ‘c

ul
tu

re
’ 

qu
es

tio
ns

 

Su
st

ai
ne

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
of

 
Co

un
ci

l a
s 

an
 

em
pl

oy
er

, 
th

ro
ug

h:
 

1)
 7

 d
ay

s 
lo

st
 t

o 
si

ck
ne

ss
 a

bs
en

ce
 

pe
r 

an
nu

m
 p

er
 

FT
E 

2)
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 

bu
lly

in
g 

an
d 

ha
ra

ss
m

en
t 

3)
 9

%
 la

bo
ur

 
tu

rn
ov

er
 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l O
ff

ic
er

s 
to

 p
ul

l t
og

et
he

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 w
ith

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

s,
 r

ec
om

m
en

d 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
 

 

In
cr

ea
se

 
ab

se
nc

e 
le

ve
ls

 

Li
tig

at
io

n 

Pu
bl

ic
 

re
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
im

ag
e 

m
ay

 
su

ff
er

 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Te
am

 

 

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
ro

ss
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

R
ev

ie
w

 
le

ss
on

s 
le

ar
ne

d 
fr

om
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
fo

r 
cr

os
s-

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l l
ea

rn
in

g 
Fa

il 
to

 
ca

pi
ta

lis
e 

on
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

le
ar

ni
ng

 

As
 a

bo
ve

, a
nd

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Po

lic
y 

G
ro

up
 

 

42



P
ay

 a
nd

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 v

12
 2

00
5-

8 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Pa

ge
 2

5 
31

/0
5/

20
05

 

20
05

-6
 

Th
em

e 
an

d 
D

ef
in

it
io

n
 

In
di

ca
to

r(
s)

 
Ta

rg
et

 

A
ct

io
n

 
R

is
k 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(c
on

ti
n

u
ed

) 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

te
nt

io
n 

Re
-r

un
 S

ta
ff

 O
pi

ni
on

 S
ur

ve
y,

 a
nd

 H
ow

 A
re

 
W

e 
D

oi
ng

 –
 m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

 
fr

on
t 

lin
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 

Fa
il 

to
 t

ra
ck

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
As

 a
bo

ve
 

 

 
 

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h,

 a
gr

ee
 a

nd
 e

m
be

d 
an

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
re

 
us

e 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 la

ng
ua

ge
 s

ki
lls

, p
ro

vi
de

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 t

ra
ns

la
tin

g 
w

ith
 

re
le

va
nt

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 t

ra
in

in
g 

Fa
il 

to
 

ca
pi

ta
lis

e 
on

 
in

te
rn

al
 

ta
le

nt
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 
 

  

R
ev

ie
w

 E
m

pl
oy

er
s 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

Se
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 im
pr

ov
ed

 in
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
lin

ke
d 

to
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 
re

la
tio

ns
 

w
or

se
n 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
 

 

43



44



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

 on Ian Hyson, County Treasurer on 01432 260235 

HomelessnessBudget0.doc  

HOMELESSNESS BUDGET 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY – 
CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE  

SOCIAL CARE ADULTS AND HEALTH 

CABINET 9TH JUNE, 2005   
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To consider virement proposals from within the base budget 2005/06, to meet anticipated 
additional costs arising from increased demand for homelessness provision. 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Recommendation 

That a budget virement from the provision for Waste Disposal to Homelessness be 
agreed. 

Reasons 

The budget provision for Homelessness is under extreme pressure in terms of meeting 
statutory provision and will overspend in the event that additional resources are not 
identified. 

Considerations 

1. Cabinet considered a confidential report on Homelessness and Housing Advice at its 
meeting on 19th May.  In addition to determining a basis for the future provision of 
the service, the report also highlighted the trend of increasing numbers of people 
requiring support and the consequent pressure on the homelessness budget. 

2. The following paragraphs highlight the position and the potential over commitment of 
the budget in 2005/06 particularly as a result of increase demand in recent months. 

3. The ability to manage expenditure within budget has been reported to Cabinet as a 
risk within budget monitoring reports throughout the 2004/05 year. 

4. The expenditure on homelessness in 2004/05 was £821,000 against a budget of 
£380,000, an overspend of £441,000. The overspend is entirely due to the costs 
associated with the use of temporary accommodation.  This position is clearly 
unsustainable.  The overall overspend within the budget for Strategic Housing was 
£235,000, an increase of £72,000 from the last reported position almost entirely due 

AGENDA ITEM 6

45



to homelessness pressures. 

5. The earlier report to Cabinet highlighted the increase in the number of applicants 
accepted as homeless. The number of homelessness applications increased by 22% 
between 2003/04 and 2004/05 from 591 to 722.  

6. In April 2004, the Homelessness (Suitability of Accommodation) Order (England) 
2003 came into force, which requires that homeless families with children or pregnant 
women are not placed in B & B accommodation. In any event, these households 
must not remain in B & B for a period longer than 6 weeks and a breach of this order 
could result in legal challenge. Since January 2005 there have been particular 
difficulties. Up to December 2004 the authority had only 1 family in B & B for more 
than 6 weeks. Since January 2005, the number of families in B & B for more than 6 
weeks are as follows: 

 January 2005   4 

 February 2005   9 

 March 2005   8 

 April 2005   19 

7. The total numbers currently (as at 17th May 2005) in B & B accommodation are as 
follows: 

 Single People   35 

 Families   22 

8. At an average cost of  £35 per night per single person, and £50 per night per family, 
the total cost based on current demand is £2,325 per night, £16,275 per week or 
£846,300 over the full year. This represents a shortfall of £457,000 on the current 
budget of £436,000 for 2005/06. This level of demand cannot be resourced from 
within the current budget available for Strategic Housing. 

9. There may be potential to utilise Supporting People funding to complement 
homelessness and accommodation agenda, for example, through the provision of 
prevention services and support services associated with homelessness and care 
leavers respectively.  This may be possible through the utilisation of a reasonably 
small element of the Supporting People grant efficiency savings, achieved since the 
commissioning of the Supporting People programme which could be used on a short 
term basis (1 to 2 year contracts) using interim contracts without the risk to long term 
Supporting People budget and strategy.  

10. There are further alternatives being considered as initiatives to help potentially 
homeless people. These initiatives cannot be resourced from within the current 
commitments on the homelessness budget. The “invest to save” initiative proposals 
will be subject to a separate report to Cabinet at a later date. 

11. Cabinet has already agreed to resource a project manager to examine a range of 
costed options regarding the future of homelessness and housing advice.   

12. Notwithstanding the action underway to minimise costs, consideration needs to be 
given to identifying virement from within the 2005/06 Budget to meet the additional 
costs. Whilst reserves could be utilised, in view of the likely recurring nature of the 
additional costs faced such an approach is not recommended.  Clearly, the 
pressures on the Social Care budget, also considered by Cabinet on 19th May, 

46



militate against virement from within that area. 

13. An alternative solution would be to vire resources from the budget provision for 
Waste Disposal.  Members will recall that this budget provision, due to its nature, is 
treated as a corporate budget heading, i.e. not impacting on the Environment budget.  
Such a proposition has become possible as a consequence of the delays 
encountered in securing sites for the delivery of waste minimisation processes 
delivered through the joint Herefordshire and Worcestershire PFI scheme.  Budget 
provision for 2005/06 was made in the expectation that further progress in securing 
sites, with consequent increases in costs, would be made.  The delay will  also have 
a knock on effect into 2006/07 and, quite possibly, 2007/08.  A solution for the 
medium term is therefore possible without significant impact on the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy. 

14. A virement of £300,000 is proposed which whilst not wholly addressing the potential 
increase in costs does encourage the cost reductions measures as outlined earlier.  

15. The position would of course be kept under review and reported within existing 
performance reporting arrangements and revisited as part of the budget process for 
2006/07.  In the unlikely event that underspendings occur then these would be 
returned to corporate funds. 

 

Risk Management 

Not addressing the budget for Homelessness will result in overspend in the current financial 
year. 

Consultees 

Not applicable. 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

 

 
 

 

47



48


